
 

       Page 1 of 6 
 

  GENEVA LAKE CONSERVANCY, INC. 
  

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
  

Saturday, January 25th, 2025, 8:30 a.m. 
Chapel on the Hill Parish Hall – N2482 Cisco Road, Lake Geneva, WI 

  
The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Geneva Lake Conservancy, Inc., took place on 
Saturday, January 25th, 2025, 8:30 a.m. at the Chapel on the Hill Parish Hall – N2482 Cisco 

Road, Lake Geneva, WI The Directors present were Messrs. Brunner, Goggin, Johnson, Nickols, 
J.D. Olson, Jeff Olson & Parker, and Mses. Constable, Johnson, Milojevic & Rappaport.  Joining 

the meeting via zoom was Messrs. Aschliman & St. Peter, and Mses. Freytag & Owen.  Staff 
present were Mses. Karow, Theys, Yancey & Mr. Nickelsen.  Ms. Karow acted as Secretary.  

 
WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER – Mr. Parker welcomed the board and staff and called 
the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. 
 
ELECTION OF JOHN ST. PETER TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS – Mr. Parker 
introduced Mr. John St. Peter.  Mr. St. Peter provided a brief biography noting his experience 
with land use zoning, lake districts and his desire to be a part of protecting Geneva Lake.   
  

A motion to elect John St. Peter to the Board of Director’s for Geneva Lake 
Conservancy was made by Mr. J.D. Olson, seconded by Mr. Goggin. The motion 
passed unanimously.  

 
BOARD EDUCATION – NEW BOARD MANUAL –Ms. Yancey provided an overview of 
the updated Board Manuals and asked that each member be sure to take their copy home with 
them.  She gave credit to Janet Happ who completed these before she retired. 
 
APPROVAL & RECEPTION OF MINUTES – Mr. Brunner asked for a motion to approve 
the Board of Director’s meeting minutes and for the Board to review and receive the committee 
meeting minutes presented: 
 

12-14-25  Board of Director’s Meeting 
12-14-25 Annual Meeting 
 
12-20-24 Advocacy Committee Meeting 
1-6-25  Finance Committee Meeting 
1-14-25 Fundraising Committee Meeting 
1-21-25 Community Outreach Meeting 

 
A motion to approve the Board of Director’s meeting minutes, the Annual Meeting 
Minutes & receive the committee meeting minutes was made by Ms. Johnson, 
seconded by Mr. Brunner. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT – REVIEW & APPROVAL OF 2025 
OPERATING PLAN – Ms. Yancey introduced the 2025 Operating Plan.  She summarized the 
seven strategic goals and highlighted that they include continuing land protection and acquisition 



 

       Page 2 of 6 
 

of property, current owned lands stewardship & maintenance, becoming the “go to” organization 
in Walworth County for information on climate change, expanding the Keep it Blue program, a 
new season & events at Rohner Park, and said work was being done to plan great fundraising 
events for 2025.  She noted the goal to have a new Development Director hired by the spring and 
looks forward to the growth of the Conservancy with this added position.  She was pleased to 
announce that a land purchase of 2.41 acres of the Peterson property would be closing this 
Monday to complete the Anglin Family Nature Preserve.  She also noted that the goal of raising 
$630,000 in unrestricted operating funds will be a lofty goal but looks forward to working 
together to achieve it!  She also noted the GLC’s continued work in leading the charge with the 
Water Alliance for Preserving Geneva Lake and she looks forward to working with our partners 
to implement the Lake Management Plan in 2025.  Lastly, she highlighted the goal to increase 
the size of the Board of Directors to 20 members and reminded current members to mark their 
calendars for the Strategic Planning session on May 3rd, 2025.   
 

A motion to adopt the 2025 Operating Plan was made by Mr. Jeff Olson, seconded 
by Mr. Nickols. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

- Review of 2024 Financial Statements Reports – Ms. Owen highlighted the success of 
the GLC in reaching over one million in contributions in 2024!  She noted that individual, 
unrestricted contributions came in well over the budgeted amount of $443,188 at 
$524,040. She summarized that Special Events are $228,622 compared to a budget of 
$215,000 and said that most of the expenses are at or below budget. She reported that the 
NOI for this year was $1,042,085 compared to last year at $681,272.  She was pleased to 
report a very strong year and thanked the staff and their commitment, as well as our 
excellent fundraising crew for their hard work.  

- 2025 Budget – Ms. Owen updated that staff and the finance committee have met over the 
last couple of weeks and have put much work into preparing the 20205 budget.  She 
highlighted that we’re looking at $591,000 for individual contributions,  $255,000 for 
special events income, and a total gross operating profit of $1,123,894.  Ms. Steele 
requested an overview of how Restricted funds are handled.  Ms. Karow provided a brief 
overview of how restricted funds flow through our financial statements and also how she 
tracks these programs.  Mr. Parker also provided input.  There was also discussion on 
allocating staff time to restricted projects and if that is something that should be 
considered in the future. 
 

- Investment Committee Meeting – Ms. Owen reported that the Investment Committee 
was able to meet for the first time and then was put to the side so that work could be done 
on the budget.  She said she hopes to meet again within the next month or so to get a 
policy in place for any larger contributions that may come our way in the future. 

 
LAND PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

- Update on the Asburton Easement – Mr. Brunner provided that there has been an 
amicable solution to the violations and the matter is being resolved.   

- The Preserve Conservation Easement – Mr. Brunner said that the committee has 
reviewed the checklist that the staff as put together and are recommending to the board 
that staff resources be allocated to pursue this easement.  Ms. Yancey provided an 
overview of the easement noting that it will be great visibility for us to have our sign 
along Geneva Street. She went on to highlight that the project would include 90 acres and 



 

       Page 3 of 6 
 

include restoring the prairie, and then linking it to the Yerkes Observatory trail. She said 
that the property has some amazing old oaks and hickories and is really be a great, 
beautiful vista.  Ms. Johnson asked at what point do we issue a statement regarding our 
stance of the Preserve Development. Ms. Yancey said she would like to wait to go forth 
with any press until after the easement has been finalized. 
 
A motion to endorse the pursuit of a conservation easement at The Preserve 
property was made by Mr. Brunner, seconded by Mr. J.D. Olson. The motion 
passed unanimously.  

 
- Vollbrecht Easement – Mr. Brunner stated that this is a 49 acre property on Bluff road 

in the Town of LaGrange, adjacent to the Kettle Moraine Forest. Ms. Yancey stated that 
the property owners rejected the first easement because it was too restrictive. She said 
we're trying to make this one much simpler, and basically states that owners are not 
allowed to cut down the old trees or allowed to subdivide the property. She notes that Jim 
Jackley continually says it's the most important property to protect in Walworth County, 
because it's in the middle of the state forest and if 40 homes are built there, it's going to 
harm wildlife corridors and watersheds that exist in the state forest.  She said that her and 
Ms. Theys would be meeting with the Vollbrecht’s in February and hopefully be bringing 
this back to the board for approval. 

- Peterson Closing – Ms. Yancey provided an overview of the process to get to this sale 
with Mr. Peterson noting many obstacles.  She said she received a photo of the Priority 
Mail being delivered to the title company. So she’s assuming he was able to get the 
paperwork notarized and there will be a closing Monday. 

- Land Protection Summary – Mr. Brunner explained that this summary is provided at 
each meeting to keep the board abreast.  Ms. Theys provided a summary over current 
Land Protection Projects and she noted that she looks forward to meeting with the 
Neshek’s & Willard’s soon.  She said that remaining projects that haven’t been 
previously discussed during the meeting will be contacted in the spring to see if we can 
move forward with any of them.  She updated the Board that the Carlson property was 
sold and that there are plans to reach out to the new owners to see if they have any 
interested in an easement.  She said the Kaminsky property, which is the small property 
behind Hildebrand Woods, has been purchased by the Village of Fontana and they will be 
knocking down the dilapidated house.  She said that we hold the easement on the adjacent 
Hildebrand Conservancy property and it’s exciting because there is a class one trout 
stream on this property.  Ms. Milojevic asked if she could put her name down for the 
Northwind property.  Ms. Freytag asked if she could be a co-champion for that property 
as well.  Mr. Jeff Olson requested the file with the property locations so that he can map 
them out. 

- Monitoring Reports – Ms. Theys reports that all monitorings are closed out for the year.  
She said that with Mr. Nickelsen moving to full-time in the spring, that she looks forward 
to getting them finished up earlier in the season.  

 
FUNDRAISING COMMITTEE 

- Development Director Candidates – Ms. Yancey announced that we have two 
candidates for the development director position.  She said that she would be setting up a 
time for the search committee to interview them next week. She noted that it's been 
somewhat challenging because our lead candidate, Tamara Marks lives in the Pacific 
Palisades, and the current wildfire situation has made it difficult to meet. She is a very 



 

       Page 4 of 6 
 

strong candidate for the position based on her previous experience.  The other candidate 
is Elliot Veith. She seems to have good fundraising experience, but not quite to the level 
we are looking for. Mr. Nickols provided input as well.  Mr. Parker said that the full 
committee will be interviewing next week via zoom. 

- Comedy Show – Mr. Nickols summarized that the date proposed was not going to work 
for most. He said his personal concern is the exposure for losing a lot of money.  He 
opened the topic up for discussion.  There was much concern over the cost of the ticket 
and risk of losing money.  Some suggestions were to find a larger venue that would help 
to draw the ticket price down.  Ms. Freytag wanted to thank Kate Gardiner for all of her 
hard work to research and plan for this event.  Mr. Parker agreed that the Board was very 
appreciative.  Mr. Jeff Olson expressed that he thought that a comedy show was a great 
idea and that he would still like to see it happen after some regrouping. 
 

A motion to send this event back to the Fundraising Committee to regroup 
and come up with another plan was made by Mr. Nickols, seconded by Ms. 
Milojevic. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
- July 24th Grecco Party – Mr. Nickols said that Mr. Licht offered to take the lead on 

having a donor thank you summer event to promote the Conservancy.  He said that Mr. 
Licht spoke to Mr. Grecco to see if he would host.  He is graciously opening his home to 
allow us to host.  Ms. Karow asked if this would be an invite only party for large donors.  
Mr. Parker said that level will need to be determined. 

 
ADVOCACY COMMITTEE 

- Whitewater Solar Farm– Ms. Freytag informed the Board of a proposed 180 megawatt 
solar farm.  She said it is being proposed by Ranger Power, and would include about 
1,000 acres in the Whitewater/LaGrange area. She said some locals reached out to Kiera 
and asked if we would help them look into it.  She noted that they are not opposed. But it 
would be near some delicate environmental areas and had concerns. She noted that the 
State is trying to be carbon free by 2050 which means about 5% of our farmland will be 
used for solar in the state of Wisconsin. So this is going to happen going forward.  She 
said this is a delicate balance between the environmental impact and trying to be carbon 
free.  Ms. Freytag said there was a meeting on the 23rd but she hasn’t had a moment to 
review the minutes, but before a meeting on Monday, she will look at that minutes and 
see what the conclusion is. She also asked if she should setup a presentation from a solar 
energy company so that we can be further informed.  Mr. Parker requested that we 
provide some information on our website regarding solar farms. 

- Lake Delavan Runoff – Ms. Theys referenced the packet of materials provided that 
includes photos taken from a video from James Bushey.  She noted that from the imagery 
that it’s quite shocking to see the amount of material that is being dumped into Delavan 
Lake from two different entry points. She said the satellite imagery shows it to be coming 
from some of the Pierce farmland.  Mr. Parker suggested that this issue go to the 
Advocacy Committee to see if we should further get involved. 

- Conservation Development Ordinance – Discussed earlier in the meeting. 
- Model Tree Ordinances – Ms. Freytag said that the committee has information that will 

help us talk to some of our municipalities.  She noted that she thinks it's going to be more 
than just giving them a piece of paper and that we're going to need to back this up with 
social media and lot of other things to get people aware.  She adds that she doesn’t think 
people know Fontana has a tree ordinance. 



 

       Page 5 of 6 
 

- Other Issues – Ms. Freytag said that 620 North Lake Shore Drive wants to put in four 
more homes and take down trees right on the lakefront and in an Enviromental Corridor. 
She said that the committee will further discuss this at their meeting on Monday. 

 
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH COMMITTEE –  

- 2025 Calendar – Ms. Steele presented the preliminary 2025 calendar to let the board 
know what staff has planned for different activities. 

- Strategic Plan for Membership/Outreach – Ms. Steele presented the Outreach 
Committee Action Plan and noted that Ms. Johnson, Ms. Elkins and the whole committee 
have been working on the Outreach strategic plan since probably fall.  She said the 
number one goal is to establish the GLC as a trusted conservation, preservation 
restoration organization in Walworth County and beyond and came up with a few 
strategies to get there. She said the committee would like to review promotional materials 
to ensure consistent messaging and have a plan for effective follow-up. 

- New Vision Brochure – Ms. Steele said that the committee reviewed the brochure and 
would like to also involve fundraising to fine tune the different membership levels & 
benefits to each level.  She said perhaps this is something to involve the new 
Development Director in. 

- 2025 Friendraising Events – Ms. Steele said that the friendraiser events slated for 2025 
will be the Annual Meeting in June, Conservation@Home open house, Kettle Moraine 
Birding festival and Small Nature Photo contest. 

 
GOVERANCE COMMITTEE –  

- Strategic Planning Session – Saturday, May 3rd – Mr. Parker asked if we’ve 
contracted with anyone yet.  Ms. Yancey said that she has received recommendation for a 
local facilitator and she will reach out for a proposal. 

- Board/Staff Dinner – On behalf of the Board and Staff, Mr. Parker thanked Mr. 
Diamond for the generous dinner at Café Calamari.  He also thanked Ms. Constable for 
all of her work to help coordinate the dinner. 

- Other Issues –Bylaw change for Annual Meeting – Ms. Yancey said that this will be 
tabled until the next meeting. 

 
WATER ALLIANCE FOR PRESERVING GENEVA LAKE 

- Geneva Lake Management Plan – Ms. Yancey referred to the memo (included in the 
board packet of materials) that was sent to SEWRPC asking for a deadline date, any 
additional costs and what we hope we're going to be part of the management plan. Mr. 
Nickols asked if another Water Alliance meeting would be scheduled soon and Ms. 
Yancey said she would like to wait until we have received the management plan. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
  

There being no other business, the Board of Director’s Meeting adjourned to Executive 
Session at 10:00am. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

       Page 6 of 6 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Board members and Ms. Yancey discussed the recommended compensation for staff in 
2025.    Mr. Brunner noted that the board needed to develop a long-range compensation 
plan for each position and the staff as a whole in addition to looking at LTA averages.   
He volunteered to provide this working with Mr. Parker. 
 
After some minor adjustments to staff salary recommendations, a motion to approve the 
staff salaries as amended was approved.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:30 a.m.  

 


